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INITIAL SCHEDULING ORDER

This proceeding concerns a proposed civil penalty of $ 6,000 which the Nuclear Regulatory

Commission (NRC) Staff seeks to impose upon All Tech Corporation (All Tech). In order to

establish a schedule for the efficient resolution on this matter, a Prehearing Conference was held

by telephone  on April 8, 2005.  At that conference the following matters were resolved and the time

limits for discovery, the filing of motions and testimony, and other related matters were discussed.

The threshold issue in this proceeding is whether or not a violation of 10 C.F.R  § 30.9

occurred on or about February 11, 2002, through a failure on the part of a representative of All

Tech to provide complete and accurate information to NRC employees who were conducting an

inspection of All Tech.  More specifically, the factual question is whether an All Tech employee, 

acting within the scope of his employment, intentionally misrepresented to an NRC Inspector that

All Tech did not then own certain gauges which were subject to regulation by the NRC because

they contained radioactive material.  Also at issue in this proceeding is whether or not a violation

of 10 C.F.R  § 30.9 occurred on or about September 15, 2003, through a failure on the part of 
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representatives of All Tech to provide complete and accurate information to NRC employees during

a pre-decisional enforcement conference.  More specifically, this factual question is whether All

Tech employee(s), acting within the scope of his/their employment, intentionally misrepresented

to NRC representatives that certain gauges, which were subject to regulation by the NRC, although

owned by All Tech in February 2002, were not made available to an NRC Inspector because, at

the time of the NRC inspection, the gauges were physically in the possession of a firm known as

Qual Tech.   Finally, in the event that the Board concludes that the NRC Staff has proven that one

or both of these violations occurred, this Board must determine whether, in light of all relevant

aggravating, extenuating, and mitigating circumstances, the proposed civil penalty should be

imposed as requested by the NRC Staff or whether, in the alternative, it should be mitigated or

remitted.  Absent objection by a party, and reconsideration by this Board, the preceding will

constitute the total scope of this proceeding.

Based on our discussions at the Prehearing Conference, this proceeding will be conducted

pursuant to Subpart G of 10 C.F.R. Part 2 unless the parties file a joint motion by 5:30 PM EDT,

on April 15, 2005, in which they request that we proceed under Subpart L or Subpart N.  If such

a motion is filed by the parties, and granted by this Board, a Prehearing Conference will be

promptly scheduled in order to set a modified litigation schedule.  Assuming that we will proceed

under Subpart G, the following schedule will be followed unless modified by a subsequent Order

of this Board.

Initial mandatory disclosures will be served by both parties via e-mail on or before April 15,

2005.  See 10 C.F.R. § 2.704.  Any additional discovery beyond the mandatory disclosures  must

be requested in writing and served on the opposing party via e-mail on or before April 22, 2005.

See 10 C.F.R.  § 2.705.  Responses to these additional discovery requests  will be served by both
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parties via e-mail on or before May 6, 2005.  If either party has any objection to the requested

discovery, or concludes that they will need additional time beyond May 6, 2005, to respond to these

additional discovery requests, such objections, or requests for an extension of time, must be served

on the opposing party via e-mail and filed on or before April 29, 2005.

All motions, except motions relating to cross-examination, must be served on the opposing

party via e-mail and filed on or before May 20, 2005.  If either party concludes that they need

additional time beyond May 20, 2005, within which to prepare and file motions, such requests for

an extension of time must be served on the opposing party via e-mail and filed no later than May

13, 2005.  Written responses to substantive motions must be served on the opposing party via e-

mail and filed no later than June 3, 2005.  See 10 C.F.R. §§ 2.323 & 2.710.

Written direct testimony, and initial exhibit lists, will be served on the opposing party via e-

mail and filed on or before June 10, 2005.  Written rebuttal testimony, and supplemental exhibit

lists, must be served on the opposing party via e-mail and filed no later than June 24, 2005.   See

10 C.F.R.  § 2.711(b).  If a party will require subpoenas to be issued in order to secure the

presence of witnesses or the production of evidence, that party shall notify the Board in writing of

the name and last known address of the proposed witness or custodian of evidence, along with a

brief explanation of the relevance of the proposed testimony or the evidence to be produced.  This

notice will be served on the opposing party via e-mail.  See  10 C.F.R.  § 2.702. 

Motions regarding cross-examination and cross-examination plans will be served on the

opposing party via e-mail and filed on or before July 8, 2005.  See 10 C.F.R.  § 2.711©).

The time and date for a second Prehearing Conference to be held via telephone will be set

by a subsequent Order of this Board.  It is our intent that such a Prehearing Conference  be held

during the week of July 18, 2005.  If, prior to that date, either party concludes that an earlier  
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Prehearing Conference would materially aid in the expeditious and fair resolution of this matter, 

they should serve on the opposing party via e-mail and file a motion to request a Prehearing

Conference.  Such a motion should include a brief explanation of the matters which the moving

party wishes to raise at the proposed Prehearing Conference and an explanation of why, in the

moving party’s judgment, the expeditious and fair resolution of this proceeding would be materially

aided by such a Prehearing Conference.  It is the intent of this Board that during the Prehearing

Conference to be held during the week of July 18, 2005, we will hear argument on any unresolved

motions, resolve any other matters that may have arisen, establish the procedures and finalize the

scope of the hearing, and set a time and date for the hearing to be held in or near Pocatello, Idaho

during August 2005. 

If either party can not be available for a Prehearing Conference at any time between the

hours of 11:00 AM EDT and 5:00 PM EDT, during the week of July 18, 2005, they must notify in

writing this Board, and the opposing party, of the times during that week when they would not be

available and the reason that they would not be available at those times.  The parties will be notified

by a subsequent Order from this Board of the exact date and time when the Prehearing Conference

will be held.  In addition, that Order will set out the procedure for the parties to call in to participate

in the Conference similar to the procedures which were utilized for the Conference on April 8, 2005.

As noted during the Prehearing Conference on April 8, 2005, the Board strongly

encourages the parties to confer with each other for the purpose of exploring whether this matter

can be settled or, in the alternative, whether the issues to be litigated can be further narrowed.  See

10 C.F.R.  § 2.338. 



1  Copies of this order were sent this date by Internet e-mail transmission to:  (1) All Tech
Corporation and (2) the NRC Staff.
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If either party has any objection to any aspect of this Order, those objections must be must

be served on the opposing party via e-mail and filed no later than April 29, 2005.

IT IS SO ORDERED.1

FOR THE ATOMIC SAFETY AND LICENSING BOARD:

/RA/

LAWRENCE G. McDADE, Chairman
ADMINISTRATIVE JUDGE

Rockville, Maryland
April 14, 2005
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